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NOTICE OF THE  4TH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Notice is hereby given that the 4TH Annual General Meeting of the shareholders of the 
Company will be held on Tuesday the 26th day of September, 2023 at 10:30 AM through Video 
Conferencing (‘VC’)/Other Audio-Visual Means (‘OAVM’) facility at the registered office 
(deemed venue) of the Company to consider the following businesses:

Ordinary Business:  

1.	 To consider and if thought fit to pass with or without modification, the following as an 
ordinary resolution:

	 RESOLVED THAT the remuneration of M/s. Biju P. Nair & Associates, the statutory 
Auditor of the Company be and hereby fixed as ̀  25,000/- (Rupees Twenty-Five Thousand 
only) plus GST.

Special Business:

2.	 To consider and if thought fit to pass with or without modification, the following as an 
ordinary resolution:

	 “RESOLVED THAT this meeting stands adjourned to a future date as may be decided by 
the Board of Directors of the company to consider and adopt the financial statements of 
the company for the year ended 31st March 2023 as audited and reported by the auditors 
of the Company along with report of the Comptroller and Auditor General (C & AG) of 
India and directors report to the shareholders.”

	 Explanatory Statement relating to Item No. 2 is attached herewith.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Sd/-
Sheela Thomas

Chairperson & Managing Director
Din: 02620668

Place	:	 Kottayam
Date	 :	 04.09.2023



K E R A L A  R U B B E R L I M I T E D

Annual Report 2022-23 7

NOTICE OF THE ADJOURNED 4TH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Notice is hereby given that the Adjourned 4th Annual General Meeting of the members of 
the Company will be held on Thursday the 30th day of November 2023 at 10.30 A.M through 
Video Conferencing (‘VC’)/Other Audio-Visual Means (‘OAVM’) facility at the registered office 
of the Company (Deemed Venue) to consider the following businesses:

Ordinary Business:  

	 To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Balance sheet of the Company as at 31st March, 
2023 and the Profit and Loss Account for the year ended as on that date together with the 
notes forming part of the accounts and cash flow statement together with the Directors 
Report, Auditors Report and comments of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India 
along with the Company’s replies thereto.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Sd/-
Sheela Thomas

Chairperson & Managing Director
Din: 02620668

Place	:	 Kottayam
Date	 :	 10.11.2023
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

To

The Shareholders,

	 Your Directors are pleased to present the 4th Annual Report of the Company for the financial 
year ended 31st March, 2023.

Financial Results

Particulars As on 31st March, 2023
(Amount in `)

As on 31st March, 2022
(Amount in `)

Total Income NIL NIL

Total Expenditure 2,13,20,816 40,65,356

Depreciation 3,80,962 26,920

Profit before tax and exceptional items  (2,13,20,816)  (40,65,356)

Profit /Loss for the year (2,12,83,122)  (40,56,886)

1.	 Performance Review

	 The Company is yet to commence its business operations in a full fledged manner. Your directors 
are hopeful of improving the performance in the coming years.

2.	 Financial Performance

	 During the year ended 31st March, 2023, the Company has not earned any income from its 
operations. The Company has incurred an expenditure of ` 2,13,20,816/- during the financial 
year. The Company has incurred a net loss of ` 2,12,83,122 /- during the year.

3.	 Authorised and Paid-up Capital

	 The Authorised share capital of the Company as on 1st April, 2022 was ` 10,00,000/- (Rupees 
Ten lakh only). However, the Authorised share capital of the Company was increased to  
` 1,00,00,00,000/- i.e 1,00,00,000 equity shares of ` 100/- each vide the Extraordinary General 
Meeting of the Company dated 07/04/2022. The Authorised share capital of the Company as 
on 31st March, 2023 is ` 100,00,00,000/- (Rupees One Hundred Crore Only). The paid up and 
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subscribed capital of the Company as on 31st March, 2023 was ` 4,09,32,800/- (Rupees Four 
Crore Nine Lakh Thirty-Two Thousand Eight Hundred Only) divided into 4,09,328 equity shares 
of ` 100/- each.

4.	 Issue of shares or other convertible securities

	 During the year under report, the Company has converted working capital loan amounting to  
` 4,04,32,800/- received from the Government of Kerala into equity shares of 4,04,328 of  
` 100/- each. The shares were allotted in the name of Governor of Kerala on behalf of Government 
of Kerala.

5.	 The change in the nature of business if any

	 There is no change in the nature of the Company’s business during the financial year under review.

6.	 Transfer to Reserve

	 The Company has not transferred any amounts to any specific reserves during the period.

7.	 Dividend

	 During the year under report, Company has not declared any dividends.

8.	 Subsidiaries, Joint Ventures and Associate Companies

	 During the year under report, the Company does not have any Subsidiary, Joint Venture or 
Associate company.

9.	 Board of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel

A. Composition of the Board of Directors

As on 31st March 2022, the constitution of the Board of Directors of the Company was as follows: 

Sl. No. Name of Directors DIN Designation

01 Sheela Thomas IAS (Rtd) 02620668 Chairperson & 
Managing Director

02 Dr. K.N. Raghavan IRS 07778055 Director

03 Rajamanickam Marimuthu Gurusamy IAS 06847977 Director

04 Harikishore Subramanian IAS 06622304 Director

05 Santhosh Koshy Thomas 02561345 Director

During the year, Mr. RAJAMANICKAM MARIMUTHU GURUSAMY (Holding DIN: 06847977) 
has ceased from Directorship with effect from 01.09.2022, as he has been transferred from the post of 
Managing Director of KSIDC.
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As on 31.03.2023, the constitution of the Board of Directors is as follows:

Sl. No. Name of Directors DIN Designation

01 Sheela Thomas IAS (Rtd) 02620668 Chairperson & 
Managing Director

02 Dr. K.N. Raghavan IRS 07778055 Director

03 Harikishore Subramanian IAS 06622304 Director

04 Santhosh Koshy Thomas 02561345 Director

B. Number of Meetings of the Board of Directors and Attendance during the year.

	 The Board of Directors met 6 times during the financial year 2022-2023. The dates of the meetings 
are 04.05.2022, 01.08.2022, 01.09.2022, 30.09.2022, 19.01.2023, and 27.03.2023.

The name of Directors of the Board, their attendance at the Board Meetings are as under:

Sl. 
No. Name of Directors Din Designation No of Board 

Meeting Attended

01 Sheela Thomas IAS (Rtd) 02620668
Chairperson 
& Managing 

Director
6

02 Dr. K.N. Raghavan IRS 07778055 Director 6

03 Harikishore Subramanian IAS 06622304 Director 6

04 Santhosh Koshy Thomas 02561345 Director 5

10.	 Appointment and Remuneration of Key Managerial Personnel

	 During the year, Mr. RAJAMANICKAM MARIMUTHU GURUSAMY (Holding DIN: 
06847977) has ceased to be a director with effect from 01.09.2022 due to transfer from the post of 
Managing Directorship of KSIDC.

11.	 General Meetings held during the Financial Year

	 Company has conducted the following Annual General Meetings and Extraordinary General 
Meeting during the year:

	 1. Adjourned 1st AGM	 –	 07.04.2022
	 2. Adjourned 2nd AGM	 –	 07.04.2022
	 3. Adjourned 1st AGM	 –	 28.09.2022
	 4. Adjourned 2nd AGM	 –	 28.09.2022
	 5. 3rd AGM	 –	 28.09.2022
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	 6. Adjourned 3rd AGM	 –	 15.02.2023
	 7. Extraordinary General Meeting	 –	 07.04.2022

12.	 Disclosure of Composition of Audit Committee

	 The provisions of rule 4 of Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 
and rule 6 of Companies (Meetings of Board and its powers) Rules, 2014 which mandates the 
constitution of the Audit Committee is not applicable to the Company during this financial year 
as the paid up share capital of the Company is less than Rupees Ten Crore.

13.	 Nomination and Remuneration Committee

	 The provisions of rule 4 of Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 
and rule 6 of Companies (Meetings of Board and its powers) Rules, 2014 which mandates the 
constitution of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee is not applicable to the Company 
during this financial year as the paid-up share capital of the Company is less than Rupees Ten 
Crore.

14.	 Independent Directors

	 The Company does not fall within the provision of Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013. 
Hence not required to appoint independent directors in this financial year.

15.	 Secretarial Standards

	 Company has duly adopted and observed SS-1 and SS-2 pursuant to the provisions of section 
118(10) of the Companies Act, 2013.

16.	 Directors Responsibility statement

The Directors hereby confirm that–

i.	 In the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards have been 
followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures.

ii.	The Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made 
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of 
the state of affairs of the company at the end of the financial year and of the profit and loss 
account of the company for that period.

iii.	The Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting 
records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the company 
and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities.

iv.	The Directors have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis.
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v.	 This clause is not applicable to this Company, since the company is not listed in anywhere in 
India or Outside India.

vi.	The directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all 
applicable laws and those systems were adequate and operating effectively.

17.	 Particulars of Loans, Guarantees or Investments

During the year under report, the Company has not directly or indirectly:

a)	 Given any loan to any person or other body corporate other than usual advances envisaged 
in a contract of supply of materials if any;

b)	Given any guarantee or provide security in connection with a loan to any other body corporate 
or person;

c)	 Acquired by way of subscription purchase or otherwise, the securities of any other body 
corporate exceeding sixty percent, of its paid-up share capital, free reserve and securities 
premium account or one hundred percent of its free reserves and securities premium account 
whichever is more. 

18.	 Unsecured Loan

	 The Company has availed unsecured loan amounting to ̀  75,95,000/- from KSIDC and received 
an amount of ` 2,86,34,745/- from Government of Kerala as Government Assistance Fund. 

19.	 Deposits

	 The company has not accepted deposits from public as envisaged under Sections 73 to 76 of 
Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Acceptance of Deposit) Rules, 2014.

20.	 Corporate Social Responsibility

	 The provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the company.

21.	 Statutory Auditors

	 M/s. BIJU P.Nair & ASSOCIATES, Chartered Accountants, Deepam, MRA 77, Moolavilakom Jn., 
Pattoor Vanchiyoor P O Trivandrum were appointed as the Statutory Auditors of the Company by 
the Comptroller and Auditor General of India for conducting the Statutory Audit for the financial 
year 2022-23.

22.	Comments by the Board on Every Qualification, Reservation or Adverse Remark or 
Disclaimer Made by the Auditor 

	 The notes forming part of the accounts are self-explanatory and do not call for any further 
clarification.
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23.	 Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption, Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo

A: Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption 

(i)	 Steps taken or impact on conservation of energy	 :	 NIL

(ii)	 Steps taken by the company for utilizing alternate sources of energy	 :	 NIL

(iii)	 Capital investment on energy conservation equipments	 :	 NIL

(iv)	 Technology absorption	 :	 NIL

B: Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo:-

The foreign exchange inflow or outflow during the period under report is as follows:

	 Foreign currency expended	 :	 Nil

	 Foreign currency earned	 :	 Nil

24.	 Extracts of Annual Return and other Disclosures under Companies (Appointment & 
Remuneration) Rules, 2014

	 The Extract of Annual Return in form No.MGT-9 as per Section 134 (3) (a) of the Companies 
Act, 2013 read with Rule 8 of Companies Act (Accounts) Rules, 2014 and Rule 12 of Companies 
(Management & Administration) Rules, 2014 is annexed hereto and forms part of this report.

25.	 Details in Respect of Frauds Reported by Auditors other than those which are Reportable 
to the Central Government

	 There are no frauds reported by the Auditors during the period under review.

26.	 Transfer of Unclaimed Dividend to Investor Education and Protection Fund

	 In terms of Section 125(2) of the Companies Act 2013, no unclaimed or unpaid Dividend relating 
to the financial year is due for remittance to the Investor Education and Protection Fund established 
by the Central Government.

27.	 Particulars of Employees

	 There are no employees in the Company whose details are required to be provided in the Board’s 
Report as per Rule 5(2) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial 
Personnel) Rules, 2014.

28.	 Particulars of Contracts or Arrangements Made with Related Parties

	 There were no contract or arrangements made with related parties as defined under Section 188 
of the Companies Act, 2013 during the year under review.
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29.	 Report of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India (Office of the Principal  
Accountant General (Audit-II Kerala, Thiruvananthapuram)

	 In accordance with Section 143(6)(b) of the Companies Act of 2013, the Comptroller and 
Auditor General of India [Office of the Principal Accountant General (Audit-II Kerala, 
Thiruvananthapuram)] has provided comments on the 2022-2023 financial statements in their 
audit report dated 17/10/2023. A copy of the same is placed as part of this Report.

30.	 Material Changes and Commitments, if any, Affecting the Financial Position of the Company 
which have Occurred between the End of the Financial Year of the Company to which the 
Financial Statements Relate and the Date of the Report

	 There were no material changes and commitments, affecting the financial position of the Company 
which have occurred between the end of the financial year of the Company to which the financial 
statements relate and the date of the report.

31.	Details of Significant and Material Orders Passed by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunals 
Impacting the Going Concern Status and the Company’s Operations in Future

	 There were no significant and material orders passed by the regulators or courts or tribunals 
impacting the going concern status and Company’s operations in future for the period under 
report.

32.	 Obligation of Company under the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, 
Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013

	 During the year under review, there is no complaint with allegations of sexual harassment were 
filed, as per the provisions of the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, 
Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013.

33.	 Maintenance of Cost Record

	 Maintenance of cost records by the company or Cost Audit has not been mandated under 
Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014.

34.	 Vigil Mechanism 

	 The Company is not covered under section 177(9) of the Companies Act 2013 and Rule 7 of the 
Companies (Meeting of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014 hence it is not required to establish 
Vigil Mechanism.

35.	 Risk Management Policy

	 The Company has a robust Risk Management framework to identify, evaluate business risks 
and opportunities. This framework seeks to create transparency, minimize adverse impact on 
the business objectives and enhance the Company’s competitive advantage. The business risk 



K E R A L A  R U B B E R L I M I T E D

Annual Report 2022-23 15

framework defines the risk management approach across the enterprise at various levels including 
documentation and reporting.

36.	 Internal Financial Control

	 The Company has adopted policies and procedures commensurate to the size and nature of the 
Company’s business for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of the business. Internal 
Control Systems in the Company are adequate enough to ensure adherence to the Company’s 
policies and safeguarding of its assets and prevention and detection of fraud.

37.	 Acknowledgement

	 Your Directors wish to express their sincere appreciation and thanks for the assistance rendered 
by the parent companies, State Government and local body authorities, banks and all others 
connected with the Company. The Board also wishes to express sincere appreciation for the 
whole-hearted co-operation extended by the staff of the Company.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

		  Sd/-
	  	 Sheela Thomas
	  	 Chairperson & Managing Director
	  	 Din: 02620668

Place	 :	 Kottayam
Date	 :	 08.11.2023
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t‑_‑mÀU‑v d‑nt‑¸‑mÀ«‑v

AwK§Ä¡v,

	 2023 amÀ¨v 31þ\v Ahkm\n¨ km¼¯nI hÀjt¯¡pÅ I¼\nbpsS aq¶mwhmÀjnI dnt¸mÀ«v 
AhXcn¸n¡p¶XnÂ \n§fpsS UbdÎÀamÀ k´pãcmWv.

k‑m¼¯‑nI ^e§Ä (Financial Results):

Particulars 2022-23 (in `) 2021-22 (in `)

s‑a‑m¯‑w hc‑pa‑m\‑w CÃ CÃ

s‑a‑m¯‑w s‑Neh‑v 2,13,20,816 40,65,356

aqey¯IÀ¨ 3,80,962 26,920

\‑nI‑pX‑n¡‑v a‑p¼‑pÅ e‑m`h‑p‑w Ak‑m[‑mcWa‑mb C\§f‑p‑w (2,13,20,816) (40,65,356)

hÀjt‑¯¡‑pÅ e‑m`‑w/\jvSw (2,12,83,122) (40,56,886)

1.	 {]IS\ AhtemI\w

	 I¼\n CXphsc AXnsâ _nkn\kv {]hÀ¯\§Ä ]qÀ®amb coXnbnÂ Bcw`n¨n«nÃ. 
I¼\nbpsS UbdÎÀamÀ hcpw hÀj§fnÂ {]IS\w sa¨s¸Sp¯psa¶ {]Xo£bnemWv.

2.	 km¼¯nI {]IS\w (Financial Performance)

	 2023 amÀ¨v 31þ\v Ahkm\n¨ hÀj¯nÂ, I¼\n AXnsâ {]hÀ¯\§fnÂ \n¶v Hcp  
hcpam\hpw t\Snbn«nÃ.{]kvXpXkm¼¯nI hÀj¯nÂ I¼\n¡v ̀  2,13,20,816/-þ cq] Nnehmbn. 
Cu hÀjw I¼\n¡v ` 2,12,83,122/-þ cq]bpsS \ãw Dïmbn«pïv.

3.	 AwKoIrXhpw ]WaS¨Xpamb aqe[\w

	 AhtemI\ ImebfhnÂ, I¼\nbpsS AwKoIrX aqe[\w 10,00,000 cq]bmbncp¶p (]¯v 
e£w cq] am{Xw). 07/04/2022 XobXnbnse I¼\nbpsS Akm[mcW s]mXptbmK¯nÂ,  
I¼\nbpsS AwKoIrX Hmlcn aqe[\w ` 1,00,00,00,000/-þ- cq]bmbn hÀ²n¸n¨p, AXmbXv  
` 100/-þ- cq]bpsS 1,00,00,000 CIznän sjbdpIÄ. 2022 amÀ¨v 31þ\v I¼\nbpsS AS¨Xpw  
k_v--kv--ss{I_v sNbvXXpamb aqe[\w ̀  4,09,32,800/-þ- cq]bmWv (\meptImSn H³]Xv e£¯n  
ap¸¯ncïmbnc¯n F®qdv am{Xw) ` 100/-þ- cq] hoXapÅ 4,09,328 CIznän sjbdpIfmbn 
Xncn¨ncn¡p¶p.

4.	 sjbdpIfpsS Cjyq AsÃ¦nÂ aäv I¬thÀ«n_nÄ skIyqcnänIÄ

	 dnt¸mÀ«v sNbvX hÀj¯nÂ, I¼\n tIcf kÀ¡mcnÂ \n¶v e`n¨ {]hÀ¯\ aqe[\  
hmbv]bmb ` 4,04,32,800/-þ Hmtcm¶n\pw ` 100/þ- sâ 4,04,328 CIznän HmlcnIfm¡n amän. tIcf 
kÀ¡mcn\v thïn tIcf KhÀWdpsS t]cnemWv HmlcnIÄ A\phZn¨Xv.

5.	 _nkn\knsâ kz`mh¯nepÅ amäw

	 AhtemI\w sN¿p¶ km¼¯nI hÀj¯nÂ I¼\nbpsS _nkn\knsâ kz`mh¯nÂ amäanÃ.
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6.	 IcpXÂtiJcw (Transfer to Reserve)

	 Cu ImebfhnÂ I¼\n GsX¦nepw {]tXyI IcpXÂ tiJc¯nte¡v XpIIsfm¶pw  
ssIamdnbn«nÃ.

7.	 em`hnlnXw

	 dnt¸mÀ«v {]Imcw I¼\n em`hnlnXw {]Jym]n¨n«nÃ.

8.	 UbdÎÀ t_mÀUv:

(F). UbdÎÀ t_mÀUnsâ LS\

2023 amÀ¨v 31 hsc, I¼\nbpsS UbdÎÀ t_mÀUnsâ  LS\ Xmsg ]dbpw {]Imcambncp¶p:

{‑Ia 
\¼À

UbdÎÀa‑mc‑ps‑S t‑]c‑v U‑ns‑FF³ (DIN) ]Zh‑n

01 joe tXmakv sF.F.Fkv. (dn«.) 02620668 sNbÀt]gvk¬ & 
amt\PnwKv UbdÎÀ

02 tUm. sI.F³. cmLh³ sF.BÀ.Fkv. 07778055 UbdÎÀ

03 cmPamWn¡w amcnap¯p Kpcpkman‑
sF.F.Fkv.

06847977 UbdÎÀ

04 lcnIntjmÀ kp{_ÒWy³ sF.F.Fkv. 06622304 UbdÎÀ

05 kt´mjv tImin tXmakv 02561345 UbdÎÀ

{io cmPamWn¡w amcnap¯p Kpcpkman (tlmÄUnwKv Un³: 06847977) KSIDC bpsS amt\PnwKv UbdÎÀ 
Øm\¯v \n¶v Øm\w amdnbXn\mÂ, 01.09.2022 apXÂ UbdÎÀ Øm\¯v \n¶v At±lw hncan¨p.

31.03.2023 hsc UbdÎÀ t_mÀUnsâ LS\ C{]ImcamWv:

{‑Ia 
\¼À

UbdÎÀa‑mc‑ps‑S t‑]c‑v U‑ns‑FF³ (DIN) ]Zh‑n

01 joe tXmakv sF.F.Fkv. (dn«.) 02620668 sNbÀt]gvk¬ & 
amt\PnwKv UbdÎÀ

02 tUm. sI.F³. cmLh³ sF.BÀ.Fkv. 07778055 UbdÎÀ

03 lcnIntjmÀ kp{_ÒWy³ sF.F.Fkv. 06622304 UbdÎÀ

04 kt´mjv tImin tXmakv 02561345 UbdÎÀ

(_n). t_mÀUv Hm^v UbdIv--tSgv--knsâ aoänwKpIfpw lmPcpw

	 2022þ2023 km¼¯nI hÀj¯nÂ UbdÎÀ t_mÀUv 6 XhW tbmKw tNÀ¶p. 04.05.2022, 
01.08.2022, 01.09.2022, 30.09.2022, 19.01.2023, 27.03.2023 XobXnIfnemWv aoänMv \S¶Xv.
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{‑Ia 
\¼À

UbdÎÀa‑mc‑ps‑S t‑]c‑v U‑n³ (DIN) ]Zh‑n

]s‑¦S‑p¯ 
t‑_‑mÀU‑v 

a‑oä‑n‑wK‑pIf‑ps‑S 
F®‑w

01 joe tXmakv sF.F.Fkv. 
(dn«.)

02620668 sNbÀt]gvk¬ & 
amt\PnwKv UbdÎÀ

6

02 tUm. sI.F³. cmLh³ 
sF.BÀ.Fkv.

07778055 UbdÎÀ 6

03 lcnIntjmÀ kp{_ÒWy³ 
sF.F.Fkv.

06622304 UbdÎÀ 6

04 kt´mjv tImin tXmakv 02561345 UbdÎÀ 5

10.	 {][m\ amt\PÀamcpsS \nba\hpw {]Xn^ehpw

	 {io cmPamWn¡w amcnap¯p Kpcpkman (tlmÄUnwKv Un³: 06847977) KSIDC bpsS amt\PnwKv 
UbdÎÀ Øm\¯v \n¶v Øm\w amdnbXn\mÂ, 01.09.2022 apXÂ UbdÎÀ Øm\¯v \n¶v 
At±lw hncan¨p.

11.	 dnt¸mÀ«v sNbvX km¼¯nI hÀj¯nÂ \S¶ s]mXptbmK§Ä

	 dnt¸mÀ«v sNbvX km¼¯nI hÀj¯nÂ I¼\n C\n¸dbp¶ hmÀjnI s]mXptbmK§fpw 
Akm[mcW s]mXptbmKhpw \S¯n:

	 1.	 amänh¨ H¶mw F.Pn.Fw.	 þ	 07.04.2022

	 2.	amänh¨ cïmw F.Pn.Fw.	 þ	 07.04.2022

	 3.	amänh¨ H¶mw F.Pn.Fw.	 þ	 28.09.2022

	 4.	amänh¨ cïmw F.Pn.Fw.	 þ	 28.09.2022

	 5.	aq¶mw F.Pn.Fw.	 þ	 28.09.2022

	 6.	amänh¨ aq¶mw F.Pn.Fw.	 þ	 15.02.2023

	 7.	Akm[mcW s]mXptbmKw	þ	 07.04.2022

12.	 HmUnäv I½nänbpsS LS\ shfns¸Sp¯Â

	 I¼\nbpsS AS¨p XoÀ¯ Hmlcn aqe[\w 10 tImSnbnÂ XmsgbmbXn\mÂ  
I¼\nIfpsS (UbdÎÀamcpsS \nba\hpw tbmKyXbpw) dqÄkv, 2014 se N«w 4 Dw I¼\nIfpsS  
(t_mÀUvaoänwKpIfpw AXnsâ A[nImc§fpw) dqÄkv, 2014 se dqÄ 6 Dw HmUnäv I½nänbpsS  
`cWLS\ \nÀ_Ôam¡p¶Xv I¼\n¡v _m[IaÃ.

13.	 t\mant\j³ B³Uv sdayqWtdj³ I½nän

	 I¼\nbpsS AS¨p XoÀ¯ Hmlcn aqe[\w 10 tImSnbnÂ XmsgbmbXn\mÂ  
I¼\nIfpsS (UbdÎÀamcpsS \nba\hpw tbmKyXbpw) dqÄkv, 2014 se N«w 4 Dw I¼\nIfpsS  
(t_mÀUv aoänwKpIfpw AXnsâ A[nImc§fpw) dqÄkv, 2014 se dqÄ 6 Dw t\mant\j³ B³Uv 
sdayqWtdj³ I½nänbpsS `cWLS\ \nÀ_Ôam¡p¶Xv I¼\n¡v _m[IaÃ.
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14.	 kzX{´ UbdÎÀamÀ

	 I¼\n \nba¯nse 2013þse sk£³ 149þsâ hyhØbnÂ I¼\n DÄs¸Sp¶nÃ.  
AXn\mÂ kzX{´ UbdÎÀamsc \nbant¡ïXnÃ.

15.	 sk{It«dnbÂ am\ZÞ§Ä

	 I¼\n \nba¯nse 2013þse sk£³ 118(10)-se hyhØIÄ A\pkcn¨v SS-1, SS-2 F¶nh 
I¼\n bYmhn[n kzoIcn¡pIbpw \nco£n¡pIbpw sNbvXn«pïv.

16.	 UbdÎÀamcpsS D¯chmZn¯ {]kvXmh\

i.	 hmÀjnI A¡uïpIÄ X¿mdm¡pt¼mÄ, icnbmb hniZoIcWt¯msS kmcamb  
amä§fpw _m[Iamb As¡uïnwKv am\ZÞ§fpw ]men¨n«pïv.

ii.	Ah Øncambn {]tbmKn¡pIbpw km¼¯nI hÀjmhkm\w I¼\nbpsS {]hÀ¯\¯nsâ 
bYmÀ°hpw \ymbhpamb ho£Ww \ÂIp¶Xn\pw B Imebfhnse I¼\nbpsS em`hpw 
\ãhpw IW¡m¡p¶Xn\pw klmbIamb As¡uïnMv t]mfnknIÄ (accounting policies) 
UbdÎÀamÀ XncsªSp¡pIbpw amäanÃmsX (consistently) D]tbmKn¡pIbpw sNbvXn«pïv.

iii.	I¼\nbpsS BkvXnIÄ kwc£n¡p¶Xn\pw h©\bpw aäv {Iat¡SpIfpw XSbp¶Xn\pw 
Isï¯p¶Xn\pambn Cu \nba¯nse hyhØIÄ¡\pkrXambn aXnbmb A¡uïnwKv 
tcJIÄ ]cn]men¡p¶Xn\v UbdÎÀamÀ DNnXambXpw aXnbmbXpamb {i² sNep¯nbn«pïv.

iv.	Øm]\w tKmbnwKv I¬sk¬ (going concern) BsW¶ ASnØm\¯nÂ UbdIv--SÀamÀ 
hmÀjnI IW¡pIÄ X¿mdm¡nbn«pïv.

v.	 I¼\n C´ybntem C´ybv¡v ]pdt¯m FhnsSbpw enÌv sNbvXn«nÃm¯Xv ImcWw Cu 
hyhØ I¼\n¡v _m[IaÃ.

vi.	_m[Iamb FÃm \nba§fptSbpw hyhØIÄ ]men¡p¶psï¶v Dd¸m¡m³ Ub‑
dÎÀamÀ icnbmb kwhn[m\§Ä cq]s¸Sp¯nbncp¶p, B kwhn[m\§Ä aXnbmbXpw  
^e{]Zambn {]hÀ¯n¡p¶XpamWv.

17.	 temWpIÄ, KymcïnIÄ AsÃ¦nÂ \nt£]§fpsS hniZmwi§Ä

dnt¸mÀ«v sNbvX hÀj¯nÂ, I¼\n t\cnt«m AÃmsXtbm:

a)	GsX¦nepw hyànt¡m aäv tImÀ¸tdäv Øm]\¯nt\m km[mcW kma{Kn hnXcW  
IcmdnÂ hn`mh\w sNbvXn«pÅ AUzm³kv AÃmsX hyànIÄt¡m tImÀ¸tdäv Øm]\¯nt\m 
hmbv].

b)	atäsX¦nepw t_mUn tImÀ¸tdäv AsÃ¦nÂ hyàn¡v temWpambn _Ôs¸«v Fs´¦nepw 
Kymcân AsÃ¦nÂ skIyqcnän.

c)	k_v--kv--{In]v--j³ hm§Â hgntbm atäsX¦nepw t_mUn tImÀ¸tdänsâ skIyqcnänIÄ.

	 Adp]Xv iXam\¯ne[nIw, s]bvUvþA¸v sjbÀ Iym]näÂ, {^o dnkÀhv, skIyqcnäokv  
{]oanbw A¡uïv AsÃ¦nÂ \qdv iXam\w {^o dnkÀhpIfpsSbpw skIyqcnäokv {]oanbw 
A¡uïnsâbpw GXmWv IqSpXÂ \evInbn«nÃ.

18.	 kpc£nXaÃm¯ hmbv]IÄ

	 I¼\n KSIDC-bnÂ \n¶v ̀  75,95,000/þ- kpc-£n-X-aÃm-¯ hmbv] t\SpIbpw, tIcf kÀ¡mcnÂ 
\n¶v ` 2,86,34,745/-þ kÀ¡mÀ klmb ^ïmbn kzoIcn¡pIbpw sNbvXp.
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19.	 \nt£]§Ä

	 2014þse I¼\nIÄ (\nt£]w kzoIcn¡Â) N«§Äs¡m¸w hmbn¨ I¼\okv BÎv, 2013þse 
sk£³ 73 apXÂ 76 hscbpÅ hIp¸pIÄ {]Imcw hn`mh\w sNbvXn«pÅ \nt£]§Ä I¼\n  
s]mXpP\§fnÂ \n¶v kzoIcn¨n«nÃ.

20.	 tImÀ¸tdäv tkmjyÂ sdkv--t]m¬kn_nenän

	 2013þse I¼\n \nba¯nse 135þmw hIp¸nse hyhØIÄ I¼\n¡v _m[IaÃ.

21.	 Ìmäyq«dn HmUnäÀamÀ

	 Fw/Fkv. _nPp ]n. \mbÀ & Atkmknbävkv, NmÀt«Uv A¡uïâpamÀ, Zo]w, MRA 77,  
aqehnfmIw Jn., ]mäqÀ, h©nbqÀ ]n.H., Xncph\´]pcw, F¶nhsc 2022þ23 km¼¯nI hÀjs¯ 
I¼\nbpsS Ìmäyq«dn HmUnäÀamcmbn I¬t{SmfÀ B³Uv HmUnäÀ P\dÂ Hm^v C´y  
\nbam\pkrXambn \nban¨p.

22.	 HmUnäÀ \S¯nb FÃm tbmKyX, kwhcWw AsÃ¦nÂ {]XnIqe ]cmaÀiw AsÃ¦nÂ  
\ncmIcWw F¶nhsb¸änbpÅ t_mÀUnsâ A`n{]mb§Ä

	 A¯cw tbmKyXtbm kwhcWtam {]XnIqeamb ]cmaÀitam \ncmIcWtam HmUnäÀ  
\S¯nbn«nÃ.

23.	 DuÀÖ kwc£Ww, kmt¦XnIhnZy BKncWw, hntZi\mWy hcpam\w, Hu«vtKm (Outgo)

F: DuÀÖ kwc£Ww, kmt¦XnIhnZy BKncWw

	 (i)	 DuÀÖ kwc£W¯nÂ kzoIcn¨ \S]SnIÄ AsÃ¦nÂ kzm[o\w	 :	 CÃ
	 (ii)	 CXc DuÀÖ t{kmXÊpIÄ D]tbmKn¡p¶Xn\v I¼\n kzoIcn¨ \S]SnIÄ	 :	 CÃ
	 (iii)	DuÀÖ kwc£W D]IcW§fpsS aqe[\ \nt£]w	 :	 CÃ
	 (iv)	kmt¦XnIhnZy BKncWw	 :	 CÃ

_n: t^mdn³ FI-vkvtN©v hcpam\hpw Hu«vtKmbpw (outgo):-

dnt¸mÀ«v sNbvX Imebfhnse hntZi \mWb¯nsâ hchv AsÃ¦nÂ Hgp¡v C{]ImcamWv:

	 hntZi Id³kn sNehgn¨p	 :	 CÃ
	 hntZi Id³kn k¼mZn¨p	 :	 CÃ

24.	 2014þse I¼\nIfpsS (\nba\hpw {]Xn^ehpw) N«§Ä¡v IognepÅ hmÀjnI  
dnt«³knsâbpw aäp shfns¸Sp¯epIfpsSbpw FI-vkv{SmIv--äpIÄ

	 I¼\okv BÎv (A¡uïv--kv) dqÄkv2014 se dqÄ8, I¼\nIfpsS (amt\Pv--saâv &  
AUvan\nkvt{Sj³) dqÄkv dqÄ 12 F¶nhbv--s¡m¸w 2013 se I¼\n BIv--änsâv sk£³ 134 (3) (F)  
{]Imcw Fw.Pn.Sn.þ9þse hmÀjnI dnt«Wnsâ FIv--kv--{SmIv--äv hmbn¨p, 2014 CXnt\mSv  
A\p_Ôn¨v Cu dnt¸mÀ«nsâ `mKamWv.

25.	 tI{µ Kh¬saâ\v dnt¸mÀ«v sN¿mhp¶h HgnsIbpÅ HmUnäÀamÀ dnt¸mÀ«v sNbvX X«n¸pIsf 
kw_Ôn¨ hniZmwi§Ä

	 AhtemI\w sN¿p¶ ImebfhnÂ HmUnäÀamÀ dnt¸mÀ«v sNbvX X«n¸pIsfm¶panÃ.
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26.	 s¢bnw sN¿s¸Sm¯ UnhnUâv \nt£]IcpsS hnZym`ymk, kwc£W ^ïnte¡v  
ssIamdpI

	 2013þse I¼\okv BÎnsâ sk£³ 125(2) {]Imcw, tI{µ Kh¬saâv Øm]n¨ C³shÌÀ 
FPypt¡j³ Bâv s{]m«£³ ^ïnte¡v ]WaSbv¡p¶Xn\v km¼¯nI hÀjhpambn 
_Ôs¸« s¢bnw sN¿s¸Sm¯tXm \ÂIs¸Sm¯tXm Bb UnhnUâpIsfm¶pw CÃ.	

27.	 Poh\¡mcpsS hniZmwi§Ä

	 I¼\nIfpsS (amt\PocnbÂ t]gvkWÂ \nba\hpw {]Xn^ehpw) dqÄkv, 2014 se dqÄ 5(2) 
{]Imcw t_mÀUnsâ  dnt¸mÀ«nÂ hniZmwi§Ä \ÂtIï Poh\¡mÀ I¼\nbnÂ CÃ.

28.	 _Ôs¸« I£nIfpambn Dïm¡nb IcmdpIfpsStbm {IaoIcW§fpsStbm hniZmwi§Ä

	 AhtemI\w sN¿p¶ hÀj¯nÂ, 2013þse I¼\okv BÎnsâ sk£³ 188 \nÀhNn¨ncn¡p¶ 
{]Imcw _Ôs¸« I£nIfpambn Icmtdm {IaoIcW§tfm \S¯nbn«nÃ.

29.	 I¬t{SmfÀ B³Uv HmUnäÀ P\densâ dnt¸mÀ«v ({]n³kn¸Â A¡uïâv P\densâ Hm^okv 
(HmUnävþII tIcf, Xncph\´]pcw)

	 2013þse I¼\okv BÎnsâ sk£³143(6) (_n) A\pkcn¨v, 2021þ2022 km¼¯nI Imcys¯  
Ipdn¨v I¬t{SmfÀ B³Uv HmUnäÀ P\dÂ Hm^v C´y {]n³kn¸Â A¡uïâv P\densâ 
Hm^okv (HmUnävþII tIcf, Xncph\´]pcw) A`n{]mb§Ä \ÂInbn«pïv. 2023 HtÎm_À 
17þse AhcpsS HmUnäv dnt¸mÀ«nse {]kvXmh\IÄ Cu dnt¸mÀ«nsâ `mKambn Hcp ]IÀ¸pw  
\ÂInbn«pïv.

30.	 km¼¯nI {]kvXmh\IÄ _Ôs¸« I¼\nbpsS km¼¯nI hÀjmhkm\¯n\pw  
dnt¸mÀ«nsâ XobXn¡pw CSbnÂ kw`hn¨ I¼\nbpsS km¼¯nI \nesb _m[n¡p¶  
Fs´¦nepw amä§fpw {]Xn_²XIfpw

	 I¼\nbpsS km¼¯nI hÀjmhkm\¯n\pw dnt¸mÀ«nsâ  XobXn¡pw CSbnÂ I¼\nbpsS 
km¼¯nI \nesb _m[n¡p¶ Imcyamb amä§tfm {]Xn_²XItfm (commitments)  
Dïmbn«nÃ.

31.	 I¼\nbpsS tKmbnwKv I¬tk¬ (Going Concern) F¶ AhØtbtbm `mhnbnÂ  
I¼\nbpsS {]hÀ¯\ \nesbbpw {]hÀ¯\§sfbpw _m[n¡p¶ coXnbnÂ  
sdKpteäÀamtcm tImSXnItfm ss{S_yqWepItfm ]mkm¡nb kp{][m\hpw hkvXp\njvThpamb  
D¯chpIfpsS hniZmwi§Ä

	 tKmbnwKv I¬tk¬ (Going Concern) F¶ AhØtbtbm ̀ mhnbnÂ I¼\nbpsS {]hÀ¯\§sf 
_m[n¡p¶ ImcyambXpw {][m\s¸«Xpamb D¯chpIsfm¶pw sdKpteäÀamtcm tImSXnItfm 
ss{S_yqWepItfm dnt¸mcv«v  sNbvX Imebfhnte¡v ]mkm¡nbn«nÃ.

32.	 2013þse tPmenØe¯v kv{XoIÄs¡Xncmb ssewKnI ]oU\w (XSbepw \ntcm[\hpw  
]cnlmchpw) \nba¯n\v IognepÅ I¼\nbpsS _m[yX

	 AhtemI\w sNbvX hÀj¯nÂ, tPmenØe¯v kv{XoIÄs¡Xncmb ssewKnI ]oU\¯n\v 
""tPmenØe¯v kv{XoIÄs¡Xncmb ssewKnI ]oU\w (XSbepw \ntcm[\hpw ]cnlmchpw)'' 
\nba{]Imcw ]cmXnIsfm¶pw e`n¨n«nÃ.
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33.	 sNehv tcJbpsS ]cn]me\w

	 2014þse I¼\nIfpsS (tImÌv sdt¡mÀUv--kv B³Uv HmUnäv) \nba§Ä {]Imcw I¼\nbpsS 
tImÌv sdt¡mÀUpIfpsS ]cn]me\w AsÃ¦nÂ tImÌv HmUnäv \nÀ_Ôam¡nbn«nÃ.

34.	 Pm{KX sa¡m\nkw

	 I¼\n BIv--Sv 2013þse sk£³ 177(9), I¼\nIfpsS dqÄ 7 (t_mÀUpw AXnsâ A[nImc§fpw) 
dqÄkv, 2014þsâ dqÄ 7 F¶nhbv¡v IognÂ I¼\n ]cnc£s¸Sm¯Xn\mÂ Pm{KXm kwhn[m\w 
Øm]nt¡ï BhiyanÃ.

35.	 dnk-vIv amt\Pvsaâv \bw

	 _nkn\Êv A]ISkm[yXIfpw Ahkc§fpw Xncn¨dnbp¶Xn\pw hnebncp¯p¶Xn\pw  
I¼\n¡v iàamb dnk-vIv amt\Pvsaâv N«¡qSv Dïv. Cu N«¡qSv kpXmcyX krãn¡m\pw  
_nkn\Êv e£y§fnÂ {]XnIqe kzm[o\w Ipdbv¡m\pw I¼\nbpsS aÕc t\«w  
hÀ²n¸n¡m\pw {ian¡p¶p. tUmIpsatâj\pw dnt¸mÀ«nwKpw DÄs¸sS hnhn[ Xe§fnÂ  
FâÀss{]knepS\ofw dnk-vIv amt\Pvsaâv  kao]\s¯ _nkn\Êv dnk-vIv N«¡qSv  
\nÀhNn¡p¶p.

36.	 B´cnI km¼¯nI \nb{´Ww

	 _nkn\knsâv Nn«bmbXpw Imcy£ahpamb \S¯n¸v Dd¸m¡p¶Xn\v I¼\nbpsS  
_nkn\knsâ hep¸¯n\pw kz`mh¯n\pw A\pkrXamb \b§fpw \S]Sn{Ia§fpw I¼\n 
kzoIcn¨n«pïv. I¼\nbpsS \b§Ä ]men¡p¶Xn\pw AXnsâ BkvXnIÄ kwc£n¡p¶Xn\pw 
X«n¸pIÄ XSbp¶Xn\pw Isï¯p¶Xn\pw I¼\nbnse B´cnI \nb{´W kwhn[m\§Ä 
]cym]vXamWv.

37.	 AwKoImcw

	 amXr I¼\nIÄ, kwØm\ Kh¬saâv, Xt±i Øm]\ A[nImcnIÄ, _m¦pIfpw  
I¼\nbpambn _ÔapÅ asäÃmhcpw \ÂInb klmb¯n\v UbdÎÀamÀ X§fpsS 
BßmÀ°amb A`n\µ\hpw \µnbpw tcJs¸Sp¯p¶p. I¼\nbpsS Poh\¡mÀ \ÂInb ]qÀ® 
lrZbt¯msSbpÅ klIcW¯n\pw t_mÀUv BßmÀ°amb A`n\µ\w tcJs¸Sp¯p¶p.

t‑_‑mÀU‑ns‑â D¯ch‑p {‑]I‑mc‑w

		  (H¸‑v‑)
	 	 j‑oe t‑X‑mak‑v
	  	 sNbÀt]gvk¬ & a‑mt‑\P‑nM‑v UbdÎÀ
		  DIN: 02620668

Øew	 :	Xncph\´]pcw
XobXn	:	08.11.2023
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The Members of Kerala Rubber Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statement

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Kerala Rubber Limited (“the 
Company”), which comprise the balance sheet as at March 31, 2023, the statement of profit and loss, 
and the statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including 
a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to 
us, the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as 
amended (the “Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the 
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 
31, 2023, and its profit/ loss and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under 
section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the 
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are 
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial 
statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other 
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that 
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion 
on the financial statements.

Emphasis of Matter

1.	 Attention is invited to note no.5 regarding the advance amount received from Kerala State 
Industrial Development Corporation (KSIDC). This amount relates to advance amount which 
was released by KSIDC to Kerala Rubber Limited for payment of ROC fees for enhancing 
the authorized share capital. However, this amount was later reimbursed to KSIDC by the 
Government and the advance amount was settled in full. The management has decided to 
classify this amount as advance in the current year with view that this amount will be later 
converted into shares which will be owned by the Government of Kerala.

2.	 Attention is invited to note no. 16 regarding Salary to MD; The Salary to MD was shown under 
other expense in the previous year. The management has reclassified this in the current year 
and is shown under employee benefit expense. This change was made by the management 
as the appointment of the MD was not confirmed up to the balance sheet date. However, the 
same was confirmed in the current financial year. Hence the management decided to present 
the remuneration to MD in the current financial year under employee benefit expense. 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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Our opinion is not modified in respect of the above matters.

Other Information

The Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other 
information comprises the information included in the Company’s Board of Director’s Report but 
does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not 
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other 
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with 
the financial statements, or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially 
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement 
of this other information; we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of 
the Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of 
the financial position, financial performance, and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the 
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the accounting standards specified under 
section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2021. This responsibility 
also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the 
Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other 
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and 
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate 
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness 
of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that 
give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the management and the Board of Directors are responsible 
for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters 
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors 
either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company’s financial reporting 
process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a 
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s 
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee 
that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it 
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in 
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken 
on the basis of these financial statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

•	 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due 
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain 
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk 
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting 
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, 
or the override of internal control. 

•	 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we 
are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Corporation has adequate 
internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

•	 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

•	 Conclude on the appropriateness of the management and Board of Directors use of the going 
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material 
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the 
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty 
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in 
the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our 
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. 
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going 
concern. 

•	 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including 
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions 
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

•	 Materiality is the magnitude of misstatement in the financial statements that, individually or 
in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable 
user of the financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and 
qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results 
of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatement in the financial 
statements.   

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned 
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in 
internal control that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with 
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships 
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, 
related safeguards.
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1.	 As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the 
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give 
in the “Annexure A”, a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, 
to the extent applicable.

2.	 As required by Section 143(5) of the Act, we give in “Annexure B”, a statement on the 
compliance to the directions issued by the Comptroller and Auditor General of India.

3.	 As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a)	 We have sought and obtained all the informations and explanations which to the best of 
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

b)	In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company 
so far as it appears from our examination of those books;

c)	 The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss, and the statement of cash flows dealt 
with by this Report are in agreement with the books of accounts;

d)	In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the accounting standards 
specified under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Accounting Standards) 
Rules, 2021;

e)	 In terms of Notification no. G.S.R. 463 (E) dt. 05-06-2015 issued by Ministry of 
Corporate Affairs, the Provision of Section 164(2) of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect 
of disqualification of directors are not applicable to the Company, being a Government 
Company.

f)	 With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of 
the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report 
in “Annexure C”.

g)	Being a Government Company, pursuant to the notification number G.S.R. 463(E) dated 
05-06-2015 issued by the Government of India, the provisions of Section 197 of the Act 
are not applicable to the Company.

h)	With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with 
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best 
of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i.	 The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial 
position. 

ii.	The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for 
which there were any material foreseeable losses. There were no amounts which were 
required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company. 

iii. a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds 
have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium 
or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other persons or 
entities, including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether 



K E R A L A  R U B B E R L I M I T E D

Annual Report 2022-23 27

recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall directly or indirectly lend 
or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever (“Ultimate 
Beneficiaries”) by or on behalf of the Company, or provide any guarantee, security or 
the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries. 

	 b) The management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no 
funds have been received by the Company from any persons or entities, including foreign 
entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or 
otherwise, that the company shall, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons 
or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party 
(“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of 
the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

	 (c) Based on audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate 
in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that 
the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e) contain any material 
misstatement.

iv.	The Company has neither declared nor paid any dividend during the year.

v.	 In respect of the financial year 2022-23, Company has not been mandated to use the 
accounting software with requisite audit trail facility. Accordingly, provision to Rule 
3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable for the corporation only 
w.e.f. April 1, 2023. Consequently, reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit 
and Auditors) Rules, 2014 is not applicable.

Other Matters

•	 We are of the opinion that the expenditure incurred by the company relating to fee paid to the 
Ministry of Corporate Affairs for the increase in authorised share capital cannot be considered 
as share issue expenses. Therefore, it has been treated as expense and charged off in the 
statement of profit and loss.

•	 During the year the Company have incurred certain expense in the nature of capital relating 
to a freehold land in the ownership of Government of Kerala with the assumption that the 
said land will be transferred into the name of the company. As per the books of accounts the 
company have incurred expenses like Land Development, Site Clearance and Infrastructural 
Works for this land and treated these expenses as Capital Work in Progress and shown under 
the head Property, Plant and Equipment. In our opinion in order qualify an expense as a 
Fixed Assets, the Company must comply with requirements provided under the Accounting 
Standards rules issue under the Companies Act, 2013. We also have verified the recognition 
rule provided under the Accounting Standard 10 Property, Plant Equipment wherein it has 
been provided the following conditions:

i.	 it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the 
enterprise; and

ii.	 the cost of the item can be measured reliably.
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Since the Company has provided a Detailed Project Report showing the future economic benefits 
from the proposed project; to be undertaken in the said freehold land. In our opinion the said expenses 
could be treated as Capital Work in Progress.

•	 Government Assistance Fund amounting to ̀  2,86,34,745/-. This amount has been transferred 
by the Government of Kerala to Kerala Rubber Limited as a temporary fund for administrative 
purposes. This amount is not in the form of subsidy/grant and also there is no specific 
instructions regarding the treatment of this account. The management has decided to utilise 
the balance in this account for increasing the paid-up capital in the future. Previously this 
account was shown under long-term borrowings, the same method is applied in the current 
year.

		

								        For Biju P Nair & Associates
					     Chartered Accountants
									         FIRM REG.No. 013316S

						                 	 Biju P, FCA, DISA, DIIT
 	 Proprietor
 	 M.No. 227089

UDIN:23227089BGSVEL8026
Place	 :	 Trivandrum
Date	 :	 06-10-2023
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"Annexure A" to the Independent Auditor's Report  
of even date on the Financial Statements of  

M/s. Kerala Rubber Limited"

The Annexure referred to in the Independent Auditor's Report to the shareholders of the Company 
on the financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2023, we report that:

i.	 a)	 The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative 
details and situation of fixed assets, which is being updated.

	 b)	The Fixed Assets have been physically verified by the management during the year and no material 
discrepancies between the book's records and the physical fixed assets have been noticed.

	 c)	 According to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of our examination of 
the records of the company does not have any immovable properties in the name of the company.

	 d)	According to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of our examination 
of the records, the company has not revalued its Property,Plant and Equipment (including Right 
of Use assets) or intangible assets orboth during the year.

	 e)	  According to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of our examination 
of the records any proceedings have not been initiated or are pending against the company for 
holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) 
and rules made thereunder.

ii.		  According to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of our examination 
of the records of the company, the Company does not have any inventory during the period of 
audit. Hence, the provisions of clause 3(ii) of the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 are 
not applicable to the company.

iii.		 During the year the Company has not granted loans to any party covered in the register maintained 
under Section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013. Hence, the provisions of clause 3(iii) of the 
Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 are not applicable to the company.

iv) 	 According to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not made any 
transactions relating to loans, investments, guarantees and securities covered by the provisions 
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of section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013. Hence, provisions of the clause 3(iv) of the 
Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 is not applicable to the company.

v)		  According to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not accepted any 
deposits during the year. Hence, the provisions of clause 3(v) of the Companies (Auditor's Report) 
Order, 2020 are not applicable to the company.

vi)		 The Central Government has not prescribed maintenance of cost records under section 148(1) 
of the Companies Act, 2013 for the activities of the company.

vii)a. According to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of our examination 
of the records of the company, undisputed statutory dues including income tax, sales tax, duty 
of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and any other statutory dues applicable to have 
generally been regularly deposited it with appropriate authorities during the year. According to 
the information and explanations given to us there were no outstanding statutory dues as on 31st 
March,2023 for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

	 b. According to the information and explanations given to us, there is no amount payable in respect of 
income tax, service tax, sales tax, customs duty, excise duty, value added tax and cess whichever 
applicable, which have not been deposited on account of any disputes as on 31st March ,2023.

viii)	 No transactions have been recorded in the books of accounts have been surrendered or disclosed 
as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961.

ix)		 According to the Information and explanations given to us and based on our audit procedures 
we are of the opinion that the Company has not defaulted in repayment of dues to financial 
institutions, banks, Government and debenture Holders.

x)		  According to the Information and explanations given to us and based on our audit procedures, 
we are of the opinion that the Company has not raised money by way of initial public offer or 
further public offer and terms loans. Hence, provisions of the clause 3(ix) of the Companies 
(Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 are not applicable to the company.

xi) a.	According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination 
of the records, no material fraud by the company or on the company by its officers or employees 
has been noticed or reported course of our audit. 

	 b.	 We have not reported anything under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 
2013 and Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 
2014 with the Central Government; 
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	 c.	 No such whistle-blower complaints has been received by the company which requires our 
consideration.

xii)	 In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is 
not a Nidhi company. Therefore, the provisions of the clause 3(xii) of the Companies (Auditor's 
Report) Order, 2020 are not applicable to the company

xiii)	 According to the information and explanation given to us and on the base of our examination of 
the records of the company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 
177 and 188 of Companies Act, 2013 where applicable and details of such transactions have 
been disclosed in the financial statement as required by applicable accounting standards. 

xiv)a.	According to the information and explanation given to us the company has an internal audit 
system commensurate with the size and nature of its business. 

	 b.	 We had considered the reports of the Internal Auditors for the period under audit. 

xv)	 According to the Information and explanations given to us and based on our audit procedures, 
the company has not entered into any non-cash transaction with directors or persons connected 
with them. Therefore, the provisions of the clause 3(xv) of the Companies (Auditor's Report) 
Order, 2020 are not applicable to the company. 

xvi)	 According to the Information and explanations given to us and based on our audit procedures, 
the company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India 
act 1934.

 xvii)	The company has not incurred cash losses in the financial year and in the immediately preceding 
financial year.

xviii)	There has not been any resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. 

xix)	 We are of the opinion that no material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that 
company is capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when 
they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. 

xx) a. According to the Information and explanations given to us and based on our audit procedures, 
there are no ongoing projects and hence the company has not transferred unspent amount to a 
Fund specified in Schedule VII to the Companies Act, 2013.

	 b)	According to the Information and explanations given to us and based on our audit procedures 
no amount remains unspent under sub-section (5) of section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 
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Place	 :	 Trivandrum
Date	 :	 06-10-2023

and hence no transfer to special account in compliance with the provision of sub-section (6) of 
section 135 of the said Act is made 

xxi)	 The company is not required to prepare consolidated financial statements and hence no 
qualifications or adverse remarks in the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order (CARO) reports 
of the companies is included in the consolidated financial statements.

					   

For Biju P Nair & Associates
					     Chartered Accountants
									         FIRM REG.No. 013316S

						                 	 Biju P, FCA, DISA, DIIT
 	 Proprietor
 	 M.No. 227089

UDIN:23227089BGSVEL8026
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“Annexure B" to the Independent Auditor's Report  
of even date on the Standalone Financial  

Statements of M/s Kerala Rubber Limited"

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (1)  
of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act")

I have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of M/S KERALA RUBBER 
LIMITED (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2023 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone 
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date. 

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial 
controls. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal 
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its 
business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention 
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the 
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility 

My responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls over 
financial reporting based on my audit. I conducted my audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on 
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards 
on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies 
Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit 
of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 
Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that I comply with ethical requirements and plan and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls 
over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in 
all material respects.

Audit involves performing procedures to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence about 
the adequacy of the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating 
effectiveness. The audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an 
understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material 
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control 
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error.

I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
formy audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide 
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial 
statements for external purposes in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles. A 
company’s internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures 
that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect 
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that 
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with 
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being 
made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) 
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, 
use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including 
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due 
to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal 
financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal 
financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, 
or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

Opinion 

In my opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls 
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were 
operating effectively as at 31st March, 2023. 

For Biju P Nair & Associates
					     Chartered Accountants
									         FIRM REG.No. 013316S

						                 	 Biju P, FCA, DISA, DIIT
 	 Proprietor
 	 M.No. 227089

UDIN:23227089BGSVEL8026
Place	 :	 Trivandrum
Date	 :	 06-10-2023
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Annexure C to the Independent Auditor’s Report

Directions issued by the Comptroller & Auditor General of India under Section 143(5) of the 
Companies Act, 2013 indicating the areas to be examined by the Statutory Auditors during the course 
of audit of annual accounts of Kerala Rubber Limited for the year 2022-23

Sl. No. Directions issued Replies

1.

Whether the Company has system in place to 
process all the accounting transactions through IT 
system. If yes, the implications of processing of 
accounting transactions outside IT system on the 
integrity of the accounts along with the financial 
implications, if any may be stated.

Yes, the company has a system in place to 
process all the accounting transactions through 
its implemented IT system, namely Tally Prime. 
As such, we have not come across any accounting 
transaction processed outside IT systems which 
would have an impact on the integrity of accounts 
or any financial implication.

2.

Whether there is any restructuring of an existing 
loan or cases of waiver/write off of debts/loans/
interest etc. made by a lender to the company due 
to the company’s inability to repay the loan? If 
yes, the financial impact may be stated. Whether 
such cases are properly accounted for? (In case, 
lender is a government company, then this 
direction is also applicable for statutory auditor 
of lender company).

Loan/Debt where company is the borrower: There 
has been no cases of restructuring of an existing 
loan or cases of waiver/write off of debts/loans/
interest etc. made by lender to company due to 
company’s inability to repay the loan in FY 22-23.
Loan/Debt where company is the lender: no cases 
of restructuring of an existing loan or cases of 
waiver/write off of debts/loans/interest etc. with 
regards to amount lent by the company to other 
parties. 

3.

Whether funds (grants/subsidy etc.) received/
receivable for specific schemes from Central/
State Government or its agencies were properly 
accounted for/utilized as per its term and 
conditions? List the cases of deviation.

Based on audit procedures and explanations 
received by us, Funds (grants/subsidy etc.) 
received/receivable for specific schemes from 
Central/State Government of its agencies were 
properly accounted as per its terms and conditions.

Sector Specific Sub-Directions under Section 143(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 -Manufacturing 
Sector

The company has not begun its operations in the financial year.				  

For Biju P Nair & Associates
					     Chartered Accountants
									         FIRM REG.No. 013316S

						                 	 Biju P, FCA, DISA, DIIT
 	 Proprietor
 	 M.No. 227089

UDIN:23227089BGSVEL8026
Place	 :	 Trivandrum
Date	 :	 06-10-2023
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 BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH 2023

 Particulars Note 
No.

As at 31 March, 
2023

As at 31 March, 
2022

 EQUITY AND LIABILITIES: 
 Shareholders’ funds 
 (a) Share Capital 3  4,09,32,800  5,00,000 
 (b) Reserves and Surplus 4  (2,55,69,732)  (42,86,611)

 1,53,63,068  (37,86,611)
 Non-current liabilities 
Long-term Borrowings 5  3,62,29,745  40,93,524 
Other Long-term Liabilities  -  - 
Long-term Provisions  -  - 

 3,62,29,745  40,93,524 
 Current liabilities 
Short-term Borrowings  -  - 
Trade Payables 6 3,82,756 6,21,512
Other Current Liabilities 7 20,63,389  14,18,525 
Short-term Provisions 8  -  - 

24,46,145 20,40,037
Total Equity and Liabilities 5,40,38,958 23,46,950

 ASSETS: 
 Non-current Assets 
Property, Plant & Equipment and Intangible Assets 9

Property, Plant and Equipment  8,61,974  3,26,245 
Intangible Assets  2,34,178  17,542 
Capital Work-in-Progress  2,18,03,769  - 

Non-current Investments  -  - 
Deferred Tax Asset (Net) 10  33,383  8,470 
Long-term Loans and Advances 11  2,25,59,536  - 
Other Non-current Assets  -  - 

 4,54,92,839  3,52,257 
Current assets 
Current Investments  -  - 
Inventories  -  - 
Trade Receivables  -  - 
Cash and Cash Equivalents 12  71,78,816  16,49,580 
Short-term Loans and Advances 13  58,018  - 
Other Current Assets 14  13,09,285  3,45,114 

 85,46,119  19,94,693 
 Total Assets  5,40,38,958  23,46,950 

Notes forming an Integral Part of Standalone Financial Statements 1 to 22
As per our report of even date attached	 For and on behalf of Board of Directors
For Biju P Nair & Associates
Chartered Accountants
FIRM REG.No. 013316S
Biju P, FCA, DISA, DIIT
Proprietor, M.No. 227089
Place	 :	 Thiruvananthapuram
Date	 :	 6/10/2023
UDIN:23227089BGSVEL8026

KERALA RUBBER LIMITED
CIN: U25209KL2019SGC058321

Sheela Thomas IAS
Managing Director 
DIN: 02620668 

Mr. Harikishore Subramanian
Managing Director 
DIN:  06622304

Amount in `
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Amount in `
 STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS AS ON 31.03 2023

 Particulars Note 
No.

Year Ended  
31 March, 2023           

Year Ended  
31 March, 2022            

Revenue from Operations 15 - -

Other Income - -

Total Income - -

Expenses

Employee Benefits Expense and Payment to Contractors 16  44,77,325  4,41,426 

Finance Costs 17  725  420 

Depreciation and amortization expense 9  3,80,962  26,920 

Other Expenses 18  1,64,61,805  35,96,590 

Total expenses  2,13,20,816  40,65,356 
Profit / (Loss) before Tax    (2,13,20,816)  (40,65,356)
Less: Tax expense:  

- Current Tax  -  - 

- Income tax Provision for Earlier years  -  - 

- Deferred Tax Charge / (Credit)  (37,695)  (8,470)

 (37,695)  (8,470)

Profit / (Loss) for the Period  (2,12,83,122)  (40,56,886)

Earnings per equity share of face value of  ` 100

Basic
20

 (3,484.61)  (811.38)

Diluted  (3,484.61)  (811.38)
Notes forming an Integral Part of Standalone Financial Statements Note - 1 to 22

As per our report of even date attached	 For and on behalf of Board of Directors
For Biju P Nair & Associates
Chartered Accountants
FIRM REG.No. 013316S
Biju P, FCA, DISA, DIIT
Proprietor, M.No. 227089
Place	 :	 Thiruvananthapuram
Date	 :	 6/10/2023
UDIN:23227089BGSVEL8026

KERALA RUBBER LIMITED
CIN: U25209KL2019SGC058321

Sheela Thomas IAS
Managing Director 
DIN: 02620668 

Mr. Harikishore Subramanian
Managing Director 
DIN:  06622304
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT AS ON 31.03 2023

 Particulars Year Ended  
31 March, 2023           

Year Ended  
31 March, 2022            

A. Cash Flow from Operating Activities

Net Profit Before Tax  (2,13,20,816)  (40,65,356)

Adjustments for:

Add: Finance Cost  76,01,850  420 

Depreciation and Amortisation  3,80,962  26,920 

Bad Debts written off  -  - 

Sundry balance written off  -  - 

Investment written off  -  - 

Loss on Sale of Investment  -  - 

Less: Interest income  -  - 

Sundry balance written Back  -  - 

Profit from Partnership Firm  -  - 

Operating Profit Before Working Capital Changes  (1,33,38,005)  (40,38,016)

Increase / (Decrease) in Trade Payables  (2,38,756)  6,21,512 

Increase / (Decrease)  in Other Current Liabilities  6,44,864  13,18,525 

Increase / (Decrease)  in Short-term Provisions  -  - 

(Increase) / Decrease in Inventories  -  - 

(Increase) / Decrease in Trade Receivables  -  - 

(Increase) / Decrease in Short-term Loans & Advances  (58,018)  - 

(Increase) / Decrease in Other Current Assets  (9,64,171)  1,54,886 

 (6,16,081)  20,94,923 

Cash (used in ) / generated from operations  (1,39,54,086)  (19,43,093)

Direct taxes paid (net)  -  - 

Net cash flow (used in)/ from operating activities (A)  (1,39,54,086)  (19,43,093)

Amount in `
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B. Cash flow from investing activities

Purchase of PPE and Intangible Asset  (2,29,37,095)  (3,70,707)

Proceeds from sale Investments  -  - 

Purchase of investments  -  - 

Profit from Partnership Firm  -  - 

Advance to TDLCCS  (2,25,59,536)  - 

Redemption / (Investment) in bank deposits  -  - 

Interest received  -  - 

Net cash from / (used in)  investing activities (B)  (4,54,96,631)  (3,70,707)

Proceeds from Issue of Share Capital  4,04,32,800  - 

Proceeds from short-term borrowings (Net)  -  - 

Repayment of Short-term borrowings  -  - 

Repayment of long-term borrowings  -  - 

Proceeds from long-term borrowings  3,21,36,221  39,63,800 

Finance cost paid  (76,01,850)  (420)

Net cash from / (used in) financing activities (C)  6,49,67,171  39,63,380 
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents during 
the year ( A+B+C)  55,16,454  16,49,580 

Opening cash and cash equivalents  16,49,580  - 

Closing cash and cash equivalents (Note a)  71,66,034  16,49,580 

Notes :

(a) Components of cash and cash equivalents

Cash on hand  4,913  - 

Balances with banks:

- in current accounts  71,73,903  16,49,580 
- in deposits accounts (with original maturity      
of 3 months or less)  -  - 

 71,78,816  16,49,580 
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(b) Reconciliation with cash and bank balances
Cash and bank balances 
(Refer Note 12)  71,78,816  16,49,580 

Less: Deposits with maturity greater than 3 months 
but less than 12 months - -

 71,78,816  16,49,580 
(c) The Cash flow statement has been prepared under the indirect method as set out in 
Accounting Standard - 3 (‘AS 3’) on Cash Flow Statement prescribed in Companies 
(Accounts) Rules, 2014. 
(d) The notes referred to above form an integral part of the financial statements.

Notes forming an Integral Part of Standalone Financial Statements Note - 1 to 22

As per our report of even date attached	 For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
For Biju P Nair & Associates
Chartered Accountants
FIRM REG.No. 013316S
Biju P, FCA, DISA, DIIT
Proprietor, M.No. 227089
Place	 :	 Thiruvananthapuram
Date	 :	 6/10/2023
UDIN:23227089BGSVEL8026

KERALA RUBBER LIMITED
CIN: U25209KL2019SGC058321

Sheela Thomas IAS
Managing Director 
DIN: 02620668 

Mr. Harikishore Subramanian
Managing Director 
DIN:  06622304
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Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

3. Share Capital					   

 As at   
31 March, 2023 

 As at   
31 March, 2022  

Authorised Shares

1,00,00,000 Equity Shares of ` 100 /- each,  1,00,00,00,000  10,00,000 

1,00,00,00,000 10,00,000 

Issued, Subscribed and Fully paid-up Shares

4,09,328 Equity shares of ` 100 /- each  4,09,32,800  5,00,000 

 4,09,32,800  5,00,000 

a) Reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the 	
     reporting year: 	

Equity shares
As at 31 March, 2023 As at 31 March, 2022
No. of 
shares  Amount (`) No. of 

shares  Amount (`) 

At the commencement of the year  5,000  5,00,000  5,000  5,00,000 

Issued during the year  4,04,328  4,04,32,800  -  - 

Outstanding at the end of the year  4,09,328  4,09,32,800  5,000  5,00,000 

b) Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to equity shares

The Company has a single class of equity shares. Accordingly, all equity shares rank equally with 
regard to dividends and share in the Company’s residual assets. The equity shares are entitled to 
receive dividend as declared from time to time. The voting rights of an equity shareholder on a 
poll (not on show of hands) are in proportion to its share of the paid-up capital of the company. 

Amount in `
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c) Equity shares in the Company held by each shareholder holding more than 5% shares.	

Equity shares
As at 31 March, 2023 As at 31 March, 2022
No. of 
shares

% of 
Holding

No. of 
shares

% of 
Holding

Equity shares of ` 100 each fullypaid-  
up held by:
Honorable Governor of Kerala  4,09,322 99.99%  4,994 99.80%

d) Shareholding of Promoters

Shares held by promoters at the end of the year

Equity shares of ` 100 each fully paid- up held by:

Promoter Name No of 
Shares

% of Total 
Shares

% Change 
during the year

Honorable Governor of Kerala  4,09,322 99.99% 0.19%

4 Reserves and Surplus

As at 31 
March, 2023

As at 31 
March, 2022  

Securities Premium

Balance as per Last Financial Statements  -  - 

Add:  Premium on Issue of Shares  -  - 

Less:  Amount Utilized towards issue of Shares  - 

Closing Balance  -  - 

Surplus / (Deficit) in the Statement of Profit and Loss

Balance as per Last Financial Statements  (42,86,611)  (2,29,724)

Add:  Profit (Loss) for the Period  (2,12,83,122)  (40,56,887)

Less:  Appropriations -  - 

Transfer to General Reserve (-)  -  - 

Amount in `
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Net Surplus / (Deficit) in the Statement of Profit and Loss  (2,55,69,732)  (42,86,611)

Total Reserves and Surplus  (2,55,69,732)  (42,86,611)

5 Long-term Borrowings

Non current portion Current portion
As at   

31 March, 
2023

As at   
31 March, 

2022

As at   
31 March, 

2023

As at   
31 March, 

2022
Unsecured Loans
Loan from Others than Related Parties 
(Unsecured)  -  - 

Government Assistance Fund  2,86,34,745  40,67,545 

Advance(KSIDC)  75,95,000  25,979 

 3,62,29,745  40,93,524  - 

6 Trade Payables				  

As at   
31 March, 

2023

 As at   
31 March, 

2022

Total outstanding dues of Micro and small Enterprises  -  - 

Total outstanding dues of creditors other than Micro and small 
enterprises  3,82,756  6,21,512 

 3,82,756  6,21,512 

	 Disclosure for Small, Medium & Small Enterprises:

	 Based on the information and records available with the management, there are no dues outstanding 
to micro and small enterprises covered under the Micro and Small Enterprises Development Act, 
2006 (MSMED) as at 31 March 2022 and as at 31 March 2021.

	 Dues to Micro and Small Enterprises have been determined to the extent such parties have been identified 
on the basis of information collected by the management. This has been relied upon by the auditors.

Amount in `
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7 Other Current Liabilities	 				  

 As at   
31 March, 

2023

 As at   
31 March, 

2022 

Other Payables  30,465  - 

Director's Salary Payable  1,40,000  13,40,000 

Internal Audit Fee Payable  36,000  40,000 

Statutory Audit Fee Payable  25,000  25,000 

- GST  -  - 

  - TDS  12,78,595  13,525 

  - GST TDS

        - GST TDS CGST  2,76,665  - 

        - GST TDS SGST  2,76,665  - 

 20,63,389  14,18,525 

8 Short-term Provisions

 As at   
31 March, 

2023

 As at   
31 March, 

2022 

Other Provisions:

  - Statutory Audit Fee Payable

- -

10. Deferred Tax Asset (Net)	

 As at   
31 March, 

2023

 As at   
31 March, 

2022

Deferred tax assets (Net)  33,383  8,470 

 33,383  8,470 

Amount in `
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11. Long-term Loans and Advances

 As at   
31 March, 

2023

 As at   
31 March, 

2022
  - Loans and advances to parties other than related parties
    (Unsecured, considered good) 2,25,59,536 -

2,25,59,536 -

Type of Borrower As at   
31 March, 2023

As at   
31 March, 2022

Amount of loan 
or advance in 
the nature of 

loan outstanding

% to the total 
Loans and 

Advances in the 
nature of loans

Amount of loan 
or advance in 
the nature of 

loan outstanding

% to the total 
Loans and 

Advances in the 
nature of loans

Promoter  -  -  -  - 

Director  -  -  -  - 

KMPs  -  -  -  - 

Related Parties  -  -  -  - 

12. Cash and Cash Equivalents

 As at   
31 March, 

2023

 As at   
31 March, 

2022
Balances with banks

 - in current accounts   16,49,580 

State Bank of India - 57283  37,83,961  - 

Vaikom Sub Treasury-02241  33,89,942  - 

 - in deposit accounts (with original maturity of 3 months or less)  -  - 

Cheques, drafts on hand  -  - 

Cash on hand  4,913  - 

Other bank balances
- Bank deposits (with maturity of more than 3 months but less 
than 12 months)		   -  - 

 71,78,816  16,49,580 

Amount in `
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13. Short-term Loans and Advances

Particulars
 As at   

31 March, 
2023

 As at   
31 March, 

2022
Loans and advances to Related parties (Unsecured, 
considered good)

(Refer Note 21) - -

Other Loans & Advances (Unsecured, considered good)

  - Advance to suppliers - -

  - Loans and advances to parties other than related parties - -

  - Rent Deposit  48,000 -

  - Prepaid expenses  10,018  - 

  - Balance with government and local authorities

  - GST - -

  - TDS/TCS/Withholding Tax - -

 58,018  - 

14. Other Current Assets

 As at   
31 March, 

2023 

 As at   
31 March, 

2022 
E-Credit Ledger Balance  13,09,285  3,45,114 

 13,09,285  3,45,114 

16. Employee Benefits Expense and Payment to Contractors

 As at   
31 March, 

2023 

 As at   
31 March, 

2022
Salaries, Wages and Bonus  20,77,325  4,41,426 

Salary to MD  24,00,000 -
 44,77,325  4,41,426 

Amount in `
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17. Finance Costs

 As at   
31 March, 

2023

 As at   
31 March, 

2022
Interest Expenses  -  - 

Bank Charges  725  420 

Other Borrowings Costs  -  - 
 725  420 

18. Other Expenses

 As at   
31 March, 

2023

 As at   
31 March, 

2022 

Subscription and Membership  5,550  - 

Sponsorship  5,90,000  - 

Repairs and maintenance  6,21,309  - 

ROC Fees  76,01,125  27,000 

Service Charge for Manpower Support  3,67,919  26,486 

Miscellaneous Expenses  20,578  - 

Advertisement and Publicity  42,50,966  - 

Communication Costs  9,629  - 

Rent of CMD  1,28,000  - 

Printing & stationery  95,712  3,920 

Consultant CS Retainership fees  77,500  40,400 

Payment to auditors (Refer note 18.1)  77,000  75,000 

Salary to MD  -  13,40,000 

Rent a Cab Contract Expense  13,94,577  2,47,222 

Meeting Expenses  32,929  17,071 

Amount in `
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Office Expenses  23,326  23,757 

Inaguration Exp for KRL Office at KPPL Premises  9,11,818  - 

Late fees for filing  208  1,000 

Legal and Professional charges  1,850  15,110 

Staff training Expense  20,448  - 

Telephone Charges  47,172  - 

Stakeholder's Meeting Expenses  7,900  1,05,298 

Travelling & Accommodation  Exp  82,600  11,440 

Cutting & Removal of Fell Down Trees  2,300  - 

Digital Signature  2,000  4,000 

Festival Allowance  6,500  - 

File Rack  3,450  - 

Filing Fee  11,950  - 

Consultancy Fees DPR Preparation  -  15,68,600 

Dinner Expenses  -  44,250 

Prior Period Expense (adjustment of Deferred Tax)  4,312  - 

Deferred Tax Adjustment  8,470  - 

Website Design Expenses  42,712  - 

Taxi Charges  -  25,568 

Business Support Service Charges  -  20,468 

Reimbursement of Expenses  11,996  - 

 1,64,61,805  35,96,590 

Amount in `
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18.1. Payment to auditors (Excluding Goods and Service Tax)

 As at   
31 March, 

2023

 As at   
31 March, 

2022

Internal Audit Fees  40,000  40,000 

Statutory Audit fees  25,000  25,000 

Taxation Matters  -  - 

Other Services  12,000  10,000 

 77,000  75,000 

19. Ratios	

Sl

No
Type of Ratio

 As at  31 
March, 

2023 
Ratio

 As at  31 
March, 

2022
Ratio

Variance 
(In %) Numerator Denominator

(a) Current Ratio 3.49 0.98 257.30 Current Assets Current Liabilities 

(b) Debt-Equity Ratio 2.36 -1.08 318.13 Total Debt Shareholders' Equity 

(c) Debt Service Coverage 
Ratio NA NA NA Earnings available 

for Debt Service Debt service 

(d) Return on Equity Ratio -3.68 -0.99 270.74 Net profits after 
taxes

Average 
shareholder’s equity

(e) Inventory turnover 
ratio NA NA NA Sales Average Inventory 

(f) Trade Receivables 
turnover ratio NA NA NA Revenue Average trade 

receivable

(g) Trade payables 
turnover ratio NA NA NA

Purchases of 
services and other 
expenses

Average trade 
Payables

(h) Net capital turnover 
ratio NA NA NA Revenue  Working Capital 

(i) Net profit ratio NA NA NA Net profit  Revenue 

(j) Return on Capital 
employed -0.42 -14.05 -97.04 Earning before 

interest and taxes  Capital Employed 

Amount in `
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Notes: 

Explanation for Change in Ratio by more than 25%: Current Ratio has increased by 257.3% due 
to increased infusion of cash through issue of Share Capital and receipts from Government of Kerala. 
The variance in Debt to Equity and Return on Capital Employed by 320.95% and 279.79% is due to 
the increase in issued share capital in the previous financial year. The variance in Return on Equity 
Ratio is due to increased operational losses in the financial year as the company began to expend more 
on its operation without any source of income.

20. Earnings per share (EPS)

Particulars
 As at   

31 March, 
2023

 As at   
31 March, 

2022

Profit (Loss) after tax attributable to equity shareholders (`) (2,12,83,122)  (40,56,886)

Number of equity shares outstanding at the end of the year-
effective shares  6,108  5,000 

Basic earnings per share (`)  (3,484.61)  (811.38)

Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding 
during the year.  6,108  5,000 

Add: Weighted average number of 0% Compulsory 
convertible preference shares outstanding at the end of 
the year (based on date of issue of shares).

 -  - 

Add: Weighted average number of 0% Compulsory 
convertible debentures outstanding at the end of the year.  -  - 

Weighted average number of dilutive equity shares outstanding 
at the end of the  year.					     6,108  5,000 

Diluted earnings per share (`)  (3,484.61)  (811.38)

21. Disclosures as required by the Accounting Standard - 18 on 'Related Party Disclosures' are 
given below:							     

Key Managerial personnel

Ms. Sheela Thomas Director
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As per our report of even date attached	 For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
For Biju P Nair & Associates
Chartered Accountants
FIRM REG.No. 013316S
Biju P, FCA, DISA, DIIT
Proprietor, M.No. 227089
Place	 :	 Thiruvananthapuram
Date	 :	 6/10/2023
UDIN:23227089BGSVEL8026

KERALA RUBBER LIMITED
CIN: U25209KL2019SGC058321

Sheela Thomas IAS
Managing Director 
DIN: 02620668 

Mr. Harikishore Subramanian
Managing Director 
DIN:  06622304

Transactions with related parties and outstanding balances as on the year end.		

 As at   
31 March, 2023 (`)

 As at   
31 March, 2022 (`) 

Managerial Remmuneration

Ms. Sheela Thomas  24,00,000  13,40,000 

22. Other Disclosures

Disclosure requirements as notified by MCA pursuant to amended Schedule III:

-	 The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the 
financial year.

-	 The Company does not have any Benami Property under Prohibition of Benami Property 
Transactions Act, 1988.

- 	 The Company has not been declared a wilful defaulter by any lender who has powers to 
declare a company as a wilful defaulter.

-	 The Company has no Scheme of Arrangement approved by the competent authority specified 
under Section 230 to 237 of the Companies Act, 2013.

Previous Period figures have been re-grouped / re-classified, wherever necessary, to make them 
comparable with Current Period's classification.
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Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements 	 					   

for the year ended 31 March 2023	 					   

(Amount in: `)

1 Corporate Information	 								      

	 Kerala Rubber Limited ("the company") having CIN: U25209KL2019SGC058321 was 
incorporated on 07/06/2019 under Companies Act, 2013 as a Public limited company. The 
Company is primarily engaged in the business of  manufacturing all types of rubber products 
and to engage in the trading of rubber products and to acquire land, develop infrastucture, 
operate industrial park, lease out or sale of land to investors/enterprises/Joint venture/Public 
private partnership for setting up factories, warehouses to emerge as a trading house for rubber 
export and to engage in trading of inputs and equipments required in the rubber industry. The 
company is domiciled in India having its registered office at Kottayam, Kerala.

2 Basis of Preparation

	 The Financial Statements of the Company have been prepared and presented in accordance 
with the Generally Accepted Accounting Principles in India ('Indian GAAP'). It comprises 
the Accounting Standards notified u/s 133 read with section 469 of the Companies Act, 2013. 
The accounting policies have been framed, keeping in view the fundamental accounting 
assumptions of Going Concern, Consistency and Accrual, and also the basic considerations of 
Prudence, Substance over form, and Materiality. The financial statement are presented in Indian 
rupees.	

2.1 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

	 a) Use of Estimates

	 The preparation  of  the  financial statements in conformity with Indian GAAP requires 
Management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amount of assets, 
liabilities and disclosure of contingent liabilities on the date of the financial statements and 
the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reported period. The estimates and 
assumptions used in the accompanying financial statements are based upon Management’s 
evaluation of the relevant facts and circumstances as of the date of financial statements which in 
Management's opinion are prudent and reasonable. Actual results may differ from the estimates 
used in preparing the accompanying financial statements. Any revision to accounting estimates 
is recognised prospectively in current and future periods.

	 b) Current / Non-Current Classification

	 All assets and liabilities are to be classified into Current and Non-current.

	 Assets	 				  

	 An asset is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

i)	 it is expected to be realised in, or is intended for sale or consumption in, the Company’s 
normal operating cycle;				  
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ii)	it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded;				 
iii)	it is expected to be realised within 12 months after the reporting date; or
iv)	it is cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a 

liability for at least 12  months after the reporting date.				  

	 Current assets include the current portion of non-current financial assets. All other assets are 
classified as non-current.					   

	 Liability	 				  

	 A liability is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria :

i)	 it is expected to be settled in the Company’s normal operating cycle;
ii)	it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded;				 
iii)	it is due to be settled within 12 months after the reporting date; or				 
iv)	the Company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for 

at least 12 months after the reporting date. Terms of a liability that could, at the option of 
the counterparty, result in its settlement by the issue of equity instruments do not affect its 
classification.				  

	 Current liabilities include the current portion of non-current financial liabilities. All other 
liabilities are classified as non-current.					  

c) Operating Cycle	 							     

	 All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s 
normal operating cycle and other criteria set out above which are in accordance with the Schedule 
III to the Act. Based on the nature of services and the time between the acquisition of assets for 
processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents, the Company has ascertained its 
operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of current – non-current classification of assets 
and liabilities.

d) Property, Plant and Equipment

	 Tangible Assets					  

	 Property, plant and equipment, capital work in progress are stated at cost, net of accumulated 
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. The cost comprises purchase price, 
borrowing costs if capitalization criteria are met, directly attributable cost of bringing the asset 
to its working condition for the intended use and initial estimate of decommissioning, restoring 
and similar liabilities. Any trade discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase 
price. Such cost includes the cost of replacing part of the plant and equipment. When significant 
parts of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Company 
depreciates them separately based on their specific useful lives. Likewise, when a major 
inspection is performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying amount of the plant and equipment 
as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs 
are recognised in profit & loss as and when  incurred. Items of stores and spares that meet the 
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definition of property, plant and equipment are capitalized at cost and depreciated over their 
useful life. Otherwise, such items are classified as inventories.

	 Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of property, plant and equipment are measured as 
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are 
recognized in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognized.

	 Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment computer software has been provided on the 
written down value (WDV), in the manner and as per the useful life prescribed in Schedule II 
to the Act, which in Management's view reflects the useful lives of the assets. If Management’s 
estimate of the useful life of a fixed asset at the time of acquisition of the asset or of the 
remaining useful life on a subsequent review is shorter than that envisaged in the aforesaid 
schedule, depreciation is provided at the higher rate in line with the Management's estimates of 
the useful life / remaining useful life.

	 The company has used the following rates to provide depreciation on its property, plant and 
equipment.

	 Class of Asset	 Depreciation Rate  (WDV)

	 Furniture and Fixtures	 25.87%

	 Computers and data processing units

	 - End user devices, such as, desktops, laptops, etc.	 63.16%

e) Intangible Assets

	 Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost after which 
they  are carried at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses, if 
any.	

	 Intangible assets are amortized on a straight line basis over the estimated useful economic life. 
The company uses a rebuttable presumption that the useful life of an intangible asset will not 
exceed ten years from the date when the asset is available for use. If the persuasive evidence 
exists to the effect that useful life of an intangible asset exceeds ten years, the company amortizes 
the intangible asset over the best estimate of its useful life. Such intangible assets and intangible 
assets not yet available for use are tested for impairment annually, either individually or at the 
cash-generating unit level. All other intangible assets are assessed for impairment whenever 
there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired.

	 The amortization period and the amortization method are reviewed at least at each financial year 
end. If the expected useful life of the asset is significantly different from previous estimates, 
the amortization period is changed accordingly. If there has been a significant change in the 
expected pattern of economic benefits from the asset, the amortization method is changed to 
reflect the changed pattern. Such changes are accounted for in accordance with AS 5 Net Profit 
or Loss for the Period, Prior Period Items and Changes in Accounting Policies.
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	 Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference 
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in 
the statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognized.

	 The company has used the following rates to provide ammortisation on its intangible assets	

	 Class of Asset	 Ammortisation Rate  (WDV)

	 Computers Software	 63.16%

	 The residual value of Intangible assets is considered Nil. The ammortisation method and useful 
lives are reviewed and adjusted,  if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

f) Impairment of Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible assets

	 The Company assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is any indication that an asset 
or a group of assets (cash generating unit) may be impaired. If any such indication exists, 
the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the asset or a group of assets. An asset’s 
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s (CGU) net selling price 
and its value in use. The recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the 
asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets 
or groups of assets. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted 
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of 
the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining net selling price, 
recent market transactions are taken into account, if available. If no such transactions can be 
identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. If such recoverable amount of the asset or 
the cash generating unit  is less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount is reduced to its 
recoverable amount. The reduction is treated as an impairment loss and is recognised in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss. After impairment, depreciation is provided on the revised carrying 
amount of the asset over its remaining useful life.

	 An assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that 
previously recognized impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such 
indication exists, the company reassesses the asset’s or CGU’s recoverable amount. A previously 
recognized impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions used 
to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognized. 
The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable 
amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, 
had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognized 
in the statement of profit & loss.

g) Capital Work-in-Progress

	 Cost of assets not ready for intended use as at the balance sheet date is shown as Capital work-
in-progress.
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h) Investments

	 Investments are classified into current and long-term investments. Investments that are readily 
realizable and intended to be held for not more than a year from the date of acquisition are 
classified as current investments. All other investments classified as long-term investments. 
However, that part of long term investments which are expected to be realized within twelve 
months from Balance Sheet date is also presented under “Current Investments” under “Current 
portion of long term investments” in consonance with the current / non-current classification of 
Schedule III of the Act.

	 On initial recognition, all investments are measured at cost. The cost comprises purchase price 
and directly attributable acquisition charges such as brokerage, fees and duties. If an investment 
is acquired, or partly acquired, by the issue of shares or other securities, the acquisition cost is 
the fair value of the securities issued. If an investment is acquired in exchange for another asset, 
the acquisition is determined by reference to the fair value of the asset given up or by reference 
to the fair value of the investment acquired, whichever is more clearly evident.

	 Long-term investments are carried at cost. However, provision for diminution is made to 
recognise a decline, other than temporary in value of long-term investments and is determined 
separately for each individual investment. Current investments are carried at lower of cost and 
fair value, determined on an individual investment basis.

	 On disposal of an investment, the difference between its carrying amount and net disposal 
proceeds is charged or credited to the statement of profit and loss.

i) Revenue Recognition

	 Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the 
company and the revenue can be reliably measured. The following specific recognition criteria 
must also be met before revenue is recognized.

	 Revenue is recognised upon rendering of the engineering consultancy service, provided 
collectability is reasonably certain. Revenue from rendering of the engineering consultancy 
services is net of Indirect taxes and discounts.	

	 Rental Income is recognized as and when accrued on the basis of the agreement entered into 
with the party.

	 Interest income is recognized on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount 
outstanding and the applicable interest rate. Interest income is included under the head “other 
income” in the statement of profit & loss.

	 Dividend income is recognized when the company’s right to receive dividend is established by 
the reporting date.
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j) Foreign Currency Transactions

Foreign Currency Transactions and Balances

	 i)	Initial Recognition

	 Foreign currency transactions are recorded in the reporting currency, by applying to the foreign 
currency amount the exchange rate between the reporting currency and the foreign currency at 
the date of the transaction.

	 ii) Conversion

	 Foreign currency monetary items are retranslated using the exchange rate prevailing at the 
reporting date. Non-monetary items, which are measured in terms of historical cost denominated 
in a foreign currency, are reported using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction. Non-
monetary items, which are measured at fair value or other similar valuation denominated in 
a foreign currency, are translated using the exchange rate at the date when such value was 
determined.

	 iii) Exchange Differences

	 All exchange differences are recognized as income or as expenses in the period in which they 
arise.

k) Employee Benefits

	 Short-term employee Benefits

	 Benefits such as salaries, wages and performance incentives are charged to the statement of 
profit and loss at the actual amounts due in the period in which the employee renders the related 
service.

	 Defined Contribution Plans

	 Payments made to defined contribution plans such as provident and pension fund are charged as 
an expense based on the amount of contribution required to be made as and when services are 
rendered by the employees.

	 Defined Benefit Plans

	 All defined benefit plans obligations are determined based on valuations, as at the Balance 
Sheet date, made by independent actuary using the projected unit credit method. Actuarial gains 
and losses are recognised immediately in the statement of profit and loss. The fair value of the 
plan assets is reduced from the gross obligation under the defined benefit plan, to recognise the 
obligation on net basis.	

	 Other Long-term Employee Benefits

	 Other long-term employee benefits include leave encashment. Leave encashment is recognised 
as an expense in the statement of profit and loss as and when it accrues on actuarial basis.
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l) Income Tax	

	 Income-tax expense comprises current tax and deferred tax charge or credit. Current tax is 
measured at the amount expected to be paid to (recovered from) the taxation authorities, in 
accordance with the Income-tax Act, 1961 enacted in India and tax laws prevailing in the 
respective tax jurisdictions where the company operates. The tax rates and tax laws used to 
compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date. 
Income tax expense is recognised in the Statement of Profit or Loss except that tax expense 
related to items recognised directly in reserves is also recognised in those reserves.

	 Deferred tax is recognised in respect of timing differences between taxable income and 
accounting income i.e. differences that originate in one period and are capable of reversal 
in one or more subsequent periods. The deferred tax charge or credit and the corresponding 
deferred tax liabilities or assets are recognised using the tax rates and tax laws that have been 
enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date. Deferred income tax relating to 
items recognized directly in the reserves is recognized in reserves and not in the statement of 
profit and loss. Deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent there is reasonable certainty 
that the assets can be realised in future; however, where there is unabsorbed depreciation or 
carried forward loss under taxation laws, deferred tax assets are recognised only if there is a 
virtual certainty supported by convincing evidence that sufficient future taxable income will 
be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realised. Deferred tax assets are 
reviewed as at each balance sheet date and written down or written-up to reflect the amount that 
is reasonably/virtually certain (as the case may be) to be realised.

	 At each reporting date, the company re-assesses unrecognized deferred tax assets. It recognizes 
unrecognized deferred tax asset to the extent that it has become reasonably certain or virtually 
certain, as the case may be, that sufficient future taxable income will be available against which 
such deferred tax assets can be realized.

	 The carrying amount of deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date. The company 
writes-down the carrying amount of deferred tax asset to the extent that it is no longer reasonably 
certain or virtually certain, as the case may be, that sufficient future taxable income will be 
available against which deferred tax asset can be realized. Any such write-down is reversed 
to the extent that it becomes reasonably certain or virtually certain, as the case may be, that 
sufficient future taxable income will be available.

	 Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable right exists to 
set-off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred 
taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

	 Minimum alternate tax (MAT) paid in a year is charged to the statement of profit and loss as 
current tax. The company recognizes MAT credit available as an asset only to the extent that 
there is convincing evidence that the company will pay normal income tax during the specified 
period, i.e., the period for which MAT credit is allowed to be carried forward. In the year in 
which the company recognizes MAT credit as an asset in accordance with the Guidance Note on 
Accounting for Credit Available in respect of Minimum Alternative Tax under the Income-tax 
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Act, 1961, the said asset is created by way of credit to the statement of profit and loss and shown 
as “MAT Credit Entitlement.” The company reviews the “MAT credit entitlement” asset at each 
reporting date and writes down the asset to the extent the company does not have convincing 
evidence that it will pay normal tax during the specified period.

m) Earnings per Share (EPS)

	 The basic earnings per equity share are computed by dividing the net profit or loss  for the year 
attributable to the equity shareholders (after deducting preference dividends and attributable 
taxes)  by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the reporting year. 
Partly paid equity shares are treated as a fraction of an equity share to the extent that they are 
entitled to participate in dividends relative to a fully paid equity share during the reporting 
period. The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period is adjusted 
for events such as bonus issue, bonus element in a rights issue, share split, and reverse share split 
(consolidation of shares) that have changed the number of equity shares outstanding, without a 
corresponding change in resources.

	 For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period 
attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding 
during the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

n) Provisions

	 Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation as a result of past events, 
it is more likely than not that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be 
required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the 
obligation. Provisions are not discounted to their present value and are determined based on the 
best estimate required to settle the obligation at the reporting date. These estimates are reviewed 
at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.

	 Where the company expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example under 
an insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognized as a separate asset but only when the 
reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to any provision is presented in the 
statement of profit and loss net of any reimbursement.	

o) Contingent Liabilities

	 A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence 
will be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events 
beyond the control of the company or a present obligation that is not recognized because it is 
not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent 
liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be recognized 
because it cannot be measured reliably. The company does not recognize a contingent liability 
but discloses its existence in the financial statements.
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p)	 Cash and Cash Equivalents

	 Cash and cash equivalents for the purposes of cash flow statement comprise cash at bank and in 
hand and short-term investments with an original maturity of three months or less.

q) Cash Flow Statement

	 Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit / (loss) before extraordinary 
items and tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of non-cash nature and any deferrals or 
accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments. Cash flows for the year are classified by 
operating, investing and financing activities.

As per our report of even date attached	 For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
For Biju P Nair & Associates
Chartered Accountants
FIRM REG.No. 013316S
Biju P, FCA, DISA, DIIT
Proprietor, M.No. 227089
Place	 :	 Thiruvananthapuram
Date	 :	 6/10/2023
UDIN:23227089BGSVEL8026

KERALA RUBBER LIMITED
CIN: U25209KL2019SGC058321

Sheela Thomas IAS
Managing Director 
DIN: 02620668 

Mr. Harikishore Subramanian
Managing Director 
DIN:  06622304



K E R A L A  R U B B E R L I M I T E D

Annual Report 2022-2366	

N
am

e 
of

 A
ss

et
B

lo
ck

 o
f A

ss
et

D
ep

. 
R

at
e

W
D

V
 a

s 
O

n
A

dd
iti

on
s (

Pu
t t

o 
U

se
)

D
el

et
io

ns
To

ta
l

D
ep

re
ci

at
io

n 

W
D

V
 A

s O
n

1-
A

pr
-2

2
"U

p 
to

  
03

-O
ct

-
20

21
"

"A
ft

er
  

03
-O

ct
-

20
21

"
31

-M
ar

-2
3

Fu
rn

itu
re

 a
nd

 F
ix

tu
re

s
Fu

rn
itu

re
10

%
 1

,9
4,

02
7 

 1
,9

7,
13

5 
 2

,3
8,

87
8 

 6
,3

0,
03

9 
 5

1,
06

0 
 5

,7
8,

97
9 

C
om

pu
te

r a
nd

 A
cc

es
so

rie
s

Pl
an

t &
 M

ac
hi

ne
ry

40
%

 1
,1

7,
17

6 
 1

,3
6,

23
1 

 3
,0

4,
46

6 
 5

,5
7,

87
3 

 1
,6

2,
25

6 
 3

,9
5,

61
7 

C
om

pu
te

r S
of

tw
ar

e
Pl

an
t &

 M
ac

hi
ne

ry
40

%
 1

5,
99

9 
 2

3,
71

8 
 3

3,
89

8 
 7

3,
61

6 
 2

2,
66

7 
 5

0,
94

9 

 - 
  

  

 - 
  

  

 T
ot

al
 3

,2
7,

20
2 

 3
,5

7,
08

4 
 5

,7
7,

24
2 

 - 
 1

2,
61

,5
28

 
 2

,3
5,

98
3 

 1
0,

25
,5

45
 

H
ea

d
D

es
cr

ip
tio

n
"C

lo
si

ng
  

B
al

an
ce

"
"T

im
in

g 
 

D
iff

er
en

ce
"

D
TA

 / 
D

T
L

A
m

ou
nt

"O
pe

ni
ng

 B
al

an
ce

  
D

TA
 / 

(D
TL

)"
 (4

,3
12

.0
0)

Pr
op

er
ty

, P
la

nt
 a

nd
 E

qu
ip

m
en

tD
ep

re
ci

at
io

n 
of

 a
ss

et
s a

s p
er

 In
co

m
e-

ta
x 

A
ct

 2
,3

5,
98

2.
60

 
D

ep
re

ci
at

io
n 

of
 a

ss
et

s a
s p

er
 b

oo
ks

 o
f 

ac
co

un
ts

 3
,8

0,
96

1.
59

 
 1

,4
4,

97
9 

D
TA

 3
7,

69
5 

C
lo

si
ng

 D
TA

 3
3,

38
3 

W
or

ki
ng

 o
f D

ep
re

ci
at

io
n 

as
 p

er
 In

co
m

e 
Ta

x 
A

ct

D
ef

er
re

d 
Ta

x 
W

or
ki

ng

(A
m

ou
nt

 in
: `

)

(A
m

ou
nt

 in
: `

)

	
R

at
e 

of
 T

ax
	

25
.0

0%
	Su

rc
ha

rg
e 

@
 1

0%
	

-
		


25

.0
0%

	
C

es
s @

 4
%

	
1.

00
%

	
Ta

x 
ra

te
	

26
.0

0%



K E R A L A  R U B B E R L I M I T E D

Annual Report 2022-23 67








	1
	2
	Kerala Rubber Ltd Annual Report 2022-23
	3
	4

